Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd

Lleoliad: | gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd Alun Davidson

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 24 Mehefin Clerc y Pwyllgor

2015 0300 200 6565

Amser: 09.00 SeneddAmgylch@Cynulliad.Cymru

Cyfarfod preifat

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon

2 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Cymru) - Cyfnod 1: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 1
(09:00 - 11:00) (Tudalennau 1 - 45)

Carl Sargeant AC, Y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol, yr Aelod sy’n gyfrifol am y Bil
Rhodri Asby, Pennaeth Newid Hinsawdd a Pholisi Cyfoeth Naturiol

Andy Fraser, Pennaeth Rhaglen Adnoddau Naturiol

Jasper Roberts, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr - Yr Is-adran Gwastraff ac Effeithlonrwydd
Adnoddau

Helena Bird, Pennaeth Ansawdd yr Amgylchedd Lleol a Rheoli Grantiau

Prys Davies, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr: Is-adran Ynni, Dwr a Llifogydd

Graham Rees, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr, Y Mor a Physgodfeydd

John Guess, Uwch gyfreithiwr

Bil yr Amgylchedd (Cymru)

Memorandwm Esboniadol

E&S(4)-19-15 Papur 1

Egwyl (11:00 - 11:10)

Cynulliad National

if Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales


http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/pri-ld10201/pri-ld10201-w.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/pri-ld10201-em/pri-ld10201-em-w.pdf

3 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Cymru) - Cyfnod 1: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 2
(11:10 - 12:00) (Tudalennau 46 - 76)

Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru

Emyr Roberts, Prif Weithredwr

Ceri Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Gweithredol Gwybodaeth, Strategaeth a Chynllunio
Sarah Williams, Pen Ymgynghorydd - Cyfoeth Naturiol a Rhaglen Ecosystemau
Steve Cook, Rheolwr Strategaeth Perygl Llifogydd

E&QS(4)-19-15 Papur 2

4 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Cymru) - Cyfnod 1: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 3
(Tudalennau 77 - 87)

Cymdeithas Cyfraith Amgylcheddol y DU

Professor Robert Lee, Cynullydd y Cyd, UKELA Gweithgor Cymru
Dr Haydn Davies, Cynullydd y Cyd, UKELA Gweithgor Cymru

Dr Victoria Jenkins, Aelod, UKELA Gweithgor Cymru

E&S(4)-19-15 Papur 3

5 Papurau i’'w nodi

Bil yr Amgylchedd (Cymru): Ymatebion i’'r ymgynghoriad

Ateb at y Cadeirydd gan y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol ynghylch y broses o benodi
Cadeirydd Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru
(Tudalen 88)

E&S(4)-19-15 Papur 4

Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Materion

Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol ynghylch Bil yr Amgylchedd (Cymru).
(Tudalennau 89 - 93)



E&S(4)-19-15 Papur 5
Llythyr at y Cadeirydd gan Gary Ashton, Cyfarwyddwr BASC, mewn perthynas a’r

Cytundeb ar Safonau Rhyngwladol ar gyfer Trapio heb Greulondeb.
(Tudalen 94)

E&S(4)-19-15 Paper 6



Eitem 2

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1



Carl Sargeant AC / AM ( r

Y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol ,
Minister for Natural Resources J)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref
Ein cyf/Our ref LF CS 0594 15

Alun Ffred Jones AM

Chair of the Environment and Sustainability Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

R
A\ June 2015

Dear Alun,

In my letter of 14 May 2015, | indicated that as well as delivering against a number of
Programme for Government commitments and wider Government priorities, the
introduction of the Environment (Wales) Bill addressed a number of recommendations
made by the Environment and Sustainability Committee, and the former Sustainability
Committee, in previous inquiries.

Ahead of my appearance before your Committee on 24 June, | am writing to provide
details on how relevant Committee recommendations have informed the development of
the provisions in the Bill and how the Bill addresses those recommendations.

In 2010, the Welsh Government consulted on A Living Wales: a new framework for our
environment, countryside and seas. The Programme for Government reflected the
outcomes of that consultation with the commitments in relation to natural resource
management, climate change and the green growth agenda. In practical terms, the
Environment (Wales) Bill translates these strategic commitments into a modern
legislative framework for Wales — underpinned by the need to reverse the decline of
biodiversity and secure the resilience of ecosystems and the services they provide as a
whole by recognising their interdependence with our economy and our communities.

Of the recommendations made by your Committee and the previous Sustainability
Committee since January 2011, there are 21 which we assess are specifically addressed
by the provisions of the Bill. First and foremost, the Bill directly addresses two key
recommendations made by the Sustainability Committee’s 2011 Inquiry into Biodiversity:
the first in relation to adopting a ecosystems approach to the management of biodiversity,
and the second on legislating to place a duty on relevant organisations to support and
promote biodiversity.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0300 0603300
?erd dd » Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0300 0604400
Tudalen yepesyn 34 Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper




Environment (Wales) Bill Recommendations of the Committee

| also wanted to highlight that the Bill addresses a number of recommendations made by
your Committee in its consideration of both the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)
and Planning (Wales) Bills at Stage 1. Details on all the relevant Committee
recommendations addressed by the Bill are provided at Annex 1.

| also wanted to take this opportunity to provide your committee with information on the
timings of when, subject to the will of the Assembly, | would anticipate the provisions of
the Bill coming into force, and when the powers to make subordinate legislation would be
exercised by the Welsh Ministers. A ‘forward look’ of relevant dates is set out at Annex 2.

| hope that you find this helpful and | thank you the contribution the Committee has made
to the development of the Bill to date. | look forward to attending your Committee to
discuss the Bill in greater detail on 24 June.

Yours sincerely

[

{ A

| / | /

| ; /

&‘v‘\ ;; \ ’ \’

\ |\

Carl Sargeant AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol
Minister for Natural Resources

Tudalen y pecyn 35



Environment (Wales) Bill Committee recommendations and the Bill

Annex 1
Committee recommendations and the Environment (Wales) Bill

1. This annex sets out how the Environment (Wales) Bill delivers against
recommendations of the Environment and Sustainability Committee, or where a
recommendation has had a direct influence over the underlying policy of the Bill.

2. This annex refers to the report of the Sustainability Committee of the Third Assembly on
the Inquiry into Biodiversity, January 2011 (recommendations 6 and 18).

3. It also refers to the following reports or inquiries of the Environment and Sustainability
Committee:

a. The Business Case for a Single Environment Body, May 2012 (recommendation
4);

b. Energy Policy and Planning in Wales, June 2012 (recommendations 4, 5, 27, and
41);

c. Coastal protection in Wales, October 2012 (recommendations 2 and 6);
d. Invasive Non Native Species, January 2014 (recommendations 1 and 2);
e. Sustainable Land Management, May 2014 (recommendation 1);

f. Stage 1 Report on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill, November
2014 (recommendations 2, 4, 6, 9, 12, 13, and 17);

g. Stage 1 Report on the Planning (Wales) Bill, January 2015 (recommendations 10
and 11).

4. The specific recommendations are set out below.

Report of the Sustainability Committee of the Third Assembly on the Inquiry
into Biodiversity, January 2011

How the Environment (Wales) Bill

Number Recommendation Description

delivers

6 The Welsh Government should adopt a strategic The ecosystem approach is a central
ecosystems approach to the management of component of Part 1 of the Bill introduced in
biodiversity in the wider countryside through the the principles of sustainable management
Natural Environment Framework. This ecosystems and delivered via the state of natural
approach should be central to the Government’s resources report (SoNaRR), the national
efforts to achieve the 2020 targets, and its natural resources policy (NNRP) and also
effectiveness should be reviewed in 2015. via area statements.

The introduction of the sustainable
management of natural resources (at
section 3) and the supporting principles

Tudalen y pecyn 36
Page 1 of 7



(section 4) will contribute to the delivery of
the Aichi Biodiversity 2020 targets by
addressing the key pressures and drivers
that affect biodiversity.

18 The Welsh Government should legislate, in the first The introduction of a new enhanced
legislative programme of the Fourth Assembly, to biodiversity duty on all public authorities
place a duty to support and promote biodiversity on with functions in relation to Wales. The new
relevant organisations, building on the duty to have duty requires that in the proper exercise of
regard to biodiversity established by Natural their functions, they must seek to maintain
Environment and Rural Communities Act. Depending  and enhance biodiversity.
on the outcome of the referendum it should do this
either using Part 4 of the Government of Wales Act
2006, or by gaining legislative competence through a
Legislative Competence Order.

The Business Case for a Single Environment Body May, 2012

How the Environment (Wales) Bill
delivers

Number Recommendation Description

4 That the Welsh Government ensures that the pathway Part 1, section 5 clearly defines a new
to creating a new and coherent organisational culture  general purpose for Natural Resources
from the merger of three organisations with different ~ Wales (NRW) in seeking to achieve the
cultures is clearly set out and the practical outcomes  objectives of sustainable management as
for stakeholders of this significant institutional change  set out in section 3 of the Bill and in doing
are clearly articulated. so apply the principles of sustainable
management which are set out in section 4.

Energy Policy and Planning in Wales, June 2012

How the Environment (Wales) Bill

Number Recommendation Description

delivers
4 The Welsh Government should develop a Natural The NNRP must take into consideration the
Resource Plan for Wales by the end of 2013. This evidence from the SoNaRR. The NNRP will
would sit alongside the Wales Infrastructure sit alongside the National Development

Investment Plan, be integrated with the Marine Spatial  Framework. The Marine Spatial Plan would
Plan and be used as a basis for the future planning of  be referred to in the NNRP.

energy projects in Wales. The framework should be

evidence-based and tested for “soundness” through

an independent examination before it is adopted.

5 That the role and function of the Wales Spatial Plan The review of the national natural resources
should be reviewed. This needs to be taken forward policy is timed to coincide with the timings
alongside work on the natural resource planning. of key documents required under the Well-

being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015. The role and function of the Wales
Spatial Plan was revised and became the

Tudalen y pecyn 37
Page g(?f 7 y



National Development Framework under
the Planning (Wales) Bill, which was
developed in concert.

19 To complement Energy Wales: A Low Carbon Part 2 of the Bill requires the Welsh
Transition and the associated energy programme the  Ministers to set five yearly carbon budgets.
Welsh Government should produce a detailed Action  For each carbon budget the Welsh
Plan by the end of 2012 with details of specific actions  Ministers must prepare a report, which sets

that are required by the Welsh Government and out their proposals and policies on how the
others to meet the targets for each form of renewable  budgets they have set will be met. The
energy. report must include proposals and policies

by reference to the areas of responsibilities
of each of the Welsh Ministers.

41 The Welsh Government should clarify how the At the national scale, the National
proposed Natural Resource Plan is to be integrated Development Framework contained within
with any changes made to the development plan the Planning (Wales) Bill will need to have
system and how this new plan relates to the Wales regard to the commitments set out in the
Spatial Plan. NNRP. At the local level, the Well-being

Plan - which will reflect evidence contained
within Area Statements — will be a material
consideration for planning consent.

Coastal protection in Wales, October 2012

How the Environment (Wales) Bill

Number Recommendation Description

delivers
2 The Welsh Government to provide assurances that To ensure a consistent approach to the
the final approved second generation of Shoreline sustainable management of natural

Management Plans for Wales clearly reflect and link resources all plans and strategies should

to the policy objectives of the National Strategy, and be in line with the NNRP, which outlines the

there are clear links between the Strategy and other priorities and opportunities for the

natural resource management policies. sustainable management of our natural
resources.

These priorities and opportunities are
delivered via area statements produced by
NRW, which consider environmental,
economic, and social issues and
opportunities for an area. NRW also have
the power to determine whether the area
statement should be a part of another plan
such as a shoreline management plan
(SMP). The Welsh Ministers will be able to
direct public bodies involved in an SMP to
ensure that the SMP is consistent with an
area statement and therefore in line with
the NNRP.

Tudalen y pecyn 38
Page 3 of 7



6 The Welsh Government to ensure that its strategic The new general purpose of NRW in
approach to coastal protection includes putting section 5 refers to the principles of
delivery mechanisms in place that support partnership  sustainable management of natural
working and a “Team Wales” approach. If the Natural  resources in section 4, which include
Resources Body takes on the coastal protection promoting and engaging in collaboration
function, a key responsibility of the body must be to and co-operation and taking account of all
ensure coordination of expertise and sharing of best  relevant evidence.
practice across Wales.

Invasive Non Native Species, January 2014

How the Environment (Wales) Bill

Number Recommendation Description

delivers
1 That the Welsh Government designates Natural NRW's duty to create SoNaRR, and the
Resources Wales as the lead organisation for the co-  power to request data from public bodies,
ordination of data collection and action to address means co-ordinating and collecting data on

Invasive Non Native Species in Wales, maintaininga  the state of natural resources and
link with the GB Non-Native Species Secretariat. This  ecosystems, and possible pressures. This
should be done as soon as possible, and no later than  would include invasive non-native species.

the end of March 2014.
2 That the Welsh Government sets out how it will In reviewing the NNRP, the Welsh Ministers
monitor Natural Resources Wales’ performance in will take into consideration the findings of

tackling Invasive Non Native Species in Wales. This  the latest SoNaRR. If the latest SoONaRR

should be done at the same time as the designation of indicates modifications are needed, the

Natural Resources Wales as the lead organisation. NNRP can be amended. Area statements
facilitate the implementation of the NNRP
and so will reflect such modifications.

Sustainable Land Management, May 2014

How the Environment (Wales) Bill

Number Recommendation Description

delivers
1 We recommend that the Welsh Government refines its  The definition of sustainable management
definition of “sustainable management” to take of natural resources and the supporting
account of four key principles. This should be done principles reflect the components
before the introduction of the Environment (Wales) recommended for the definition of

Bill, and preferably feature in the draft Bill the Minister  sustainable land management.
for Natural and Resources and Food has committed to

providing by the end of 2014. The key principles are: UL ERTHERG LeeR 7 i B eviin e

long-term components of the definition of

- That any definition of sustainable land sustainable development through reference
management should be based upon the Welsh to the needs of future generations and the
Government's definition of sustainable requirement to consider the short, medium,

development and recognise the interdependence  and long-term consequences on
of the environmental, social and economic needs  ecosystems.

0 el e aih oy el s The definition of sustainable management

Tudalen y pecyn 39
Page X(?f 7 y



- That any definition should recognise the need for  of natural resources is to ensure that the
sustainable land management in Wales to protect  use and management of land is undertaken
and enhance ecosystem services and biodiversity in such a way as to ensure that the
and the public benefits they provide to Welsh resilience of ecosystems and the services
society. they provide are maintained and enhanced

for both current and future generations. The

supporting principles further identify the
need to consider the multiple benefits

(services) that we receive from our

ecosystems and to ensure that these

multiple benefits are considered in decision-

— That sustainable land management should seek  making.
to protect Wales's most important and cherished
landscapes.

— That any definition should recognise the
importance of ensuring that land-based business
in Wales, including agricultural and forestry
businesses, are profitable and can continue to
support vibrant rural communities.

Stage 1 Report on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill,
November 2014

How the Environment (Wales) Bill

Number Recommendation Description

delivers
2 That the Welsh Government takes steps to ensure The impact of the Well-being of Future
that the impact of this legislation is understood and Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is reflected
addressed across all of the policy areas the Bill in the Environment (Wales) Bill in the
encompasses. provisions relating to the sustainable

management of natural resources and its
principles; the duty on public bodies to
provide information further to implementing
the NNRP; and the setting of interim
emissions targets and carbon budgets.

4 That the Welsh Government amend the principles set  The principles of sustainable management
out in section 8(2) to ensure that public bodies are of natural resources includes the promotion
clear that citizen engagement and co-production of and engagement in collaboration and co-

should be a key element of the approach to applying  operation. Public bodies will need to take
the sustainable development principle and objective these into account.

setting.

6 That the Welsh Government prepare a detailed Correspondence to your Committee in
document prior to Stage 2 of this Bill clearly setting relation to both the Well-being of Future
out the relationship between this Bill, the Planning Generations (Wales) and Planning (Wales)
(Wales) Bill and the proposed Environment (Wales) Bills during the respective scrutiny process
Bill including: addressed these specific points.

- anintegrated timetable of planning and reporting  Provisions in this Bill have been carefully
duties contained in each of the Bills; designed to complement and support
delivery of requirements imposed by the
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)
and Planning (Wales) Bills, including how a
cost-effective approach to integrated to

- adiagram setting out clearly how the proposed
plans contained in each of the Bills relate to each
other;

Tudalen y pecyn 40
Page 5 of 7



12

13

17

- the roles of the bodies required to be involved in
the development of the plans under each of the
Bills.

That the Welsh Government amends the sustainable
development principle to reflect the broader issues
included in both the One Wales: One Planet and
Brundtland definitions of sustainable development,
particularly climate change, using only our fair share
of the earth’s resources, environmental limits and the
international impact of what we do in Wales.

That Welsh Government guidance to public bodies
sets out how they will be expected to fulfil their
obligations under the Bill when engaging other
organisations to deliver services on their behalf and
make this clear in the document published in
response to recommendation 5.

That the Welsh Government clarifies and strengthens

the wording of the goals and their descriptors to reflect

the many comments made by stakeholders and the
findings of the National Conversation interim report. In

particular, we believe that the goals should specifically

address key issues such as environmental limits,
restoration of biodiversity, international impacts and
social justice, and that the language used in the goals
should be clear and unambiguous.

That the Welsh Government sets out clearly and
concisely exactly what public bodies should achieve
as a result of embedding the well-being goals into
their decision making processes. We believe that the
Minister should set clear, specific outcomes below the
level of goals against which public bodies and the
Commissioner can assess progress at public body
level.

delivery can be best achieved.

The Bill expands the meanings, within the
framework of a resilient and globally-
responsible Wales, of what organisations
must seek to achieve on climate change
and conservation.

Within the framework set by the Well-being
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015,
this Bill sets out the detail of how the
organisations which are subject to it are to
fulfil their obligation under the Act to
contribute to the environmental well-being
of current and future generations.

Building on the requirement for
organisations to contribute to the well-being
goals (which include healthy, functioning
ecosystems, and recognising the limits of
the global environment) the Bill places a
duty on public authorities to seek to
maintain and enhance biodiversity.

The Bill, via the current definition of
sustainable management of natural
resources and the supporting principles,
applies an ecosystem approach, which
addresses the issue of ‘ecosystem
thresholds’ by reflecting that the impacts of
human activities are integral to ecosystem
interactions and vice-versa, and that the
processes underlying ecosystem services
are inherently complex and dynamic.

The Bill specifically supports the framework
established through the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 by
making provision for strategic and local
evidence on the sustainable management
of Wales’ natural resources to inform public
service delivery planning and decision-
making.

Tudalen g pecyn 41

Page 6 of 7



Stage 1 Report on the Planning (Wales) Bill, January 2015

How the Environment (Wales) Bill

Number Recommendation Description

delivers

10 That the Welsh Government clearly explains how the  Correspondence to your Committee in
proposed national Natural Resources Policy and area-  relation to both the Well-being of Future
based Natural Resource plans will interface with the Generations (Wales) and Planning (Wales)
planning regime before the introduction of the Bill during the respective scrutiny process
Environment (Wales) Bill. addressed this specific points and included

detail on how the NNRP and Area
Statements would interface with wider
legislative reforms.

11 That the Minister brings forward amendments tothe ~ The Welsh Ministers are responsible for

Bill to ensure that marine and terrestrial planning is both the NNRP and the Wales National
closely aligned and that plan-makers (including Welsh  Marine Plan, so there will be consistency
Ministers) are required to have due regard for the between the two statutory documents.

interrelationship between these two environments. The area statements from NRW must

consider all relevant evidence, including a
Wales National Marine Plan. Public bodies
must assist in the implementation of an
area statement.

Tudalen y pecyn 42
Page 7 of 7



Environment (Wales) Bill

Annex 2

Commencement and subordinate legislation

Forward look: Anticipated commencement and subordinate legislation dates

1. This Annex sets out the dates by which it is expected that the provisions of the Bill will
be commenced, and dates by which it is anticipated that powers conferred on the Welsh
Ministers to make subordinate legislation would be exercised. It may be most helpful to
read it alongside the Statement of Policy Intent.

Date Milestone Notes

March 2016

May 2016

May 2016

Q3 2016

September 2016
December 2016

December 2016

December 2016

January 2017

January 2017

-- Anticipated date of Royal Assent, subject to the will of the Assembly --

Commencements two months after Royal
Assent.

Part 1 (sustainable management of natural
resources); Part 2 (climate change); Part 5
(fisheries for shellfish); Section 83 (repeal
of publication requirements); Section 84
(appeals against special drainage levies);
Section 85 (power of entry); section 86
(byelaws).

-- Elections to the National Assembly for Wales --

The Welsh Ministers abolish the Regional
Flood and Coastal Committee and establish
Flood and Coastal Erosion Committee.

NRW publish first SoNaRR.

Indicative date by which the Welsh
Ministers make regulations on fees for

monitoring, variation etc. of marine licenses.

Indicative date by which the Welsh
Ministers make regulations on further
provisions for the payment of fees for
marine licenses.

Indicative date by which the Welsh
Ministers make regulations on appeals
against variation etc. of marine licenses for
non-payment of fees or deposits.

Earliest time that the Welsh Ministers would
consider making regulations for the
separate collection of waste.

Earliest time that the Welsh Ministers would
consider making regulations prohibiting
disposal of food waste to sewer.

Under section 82 of the Bill and sections
26B, 26C, and 26D of the Flood and
Coastal Management Act 2010, as inserted
by section 82 of the Bill.

Under section 8 of the Bill.

Under section 72A of the Marine and
Coastal Access Act 2009, as inserted by
section 78 of the Bill.

Under section 107A of the Marine and
Coastal Access Act 2009, as inserted by
section 79 of the Bill.

Under section 108(2A) of the Marine and
Coastal Access Act 2009, as inserted by
section 80 of the Bill.

Under section 45AA of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990, as inserted by section
66 of the Bill.

Under section 34D of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990, as inserted by section
67 of the Bill.

Tudalen Y pecyn 43

Page 1 of 3



Environment (Wales) Bill Commencement and subordinate legislation

January 2017 Earliest time that the Welsh Ministers would ~ Under section 9A of the Waste (Wales)
consider making regulations prohibiting or ~ Measure 2010, inserted by section 68 of
regulating disposal of waste by incineration.  the Bill.

March 2017 The Welsh Ministers publish NNRP. Under section 9 of the Bill.

May 2017 Indicative date for publication by the Welsh  Under section 13 of the Bill. It is intended
Ministers of guidance about implementing  that the guidance would be provided as
area statements. soon as possible after the Bill receives

Royal Assent.

May 2017 Regulations to define the meaning of Under section 36 of the Bill. It is intended
carbon units. that these regulations would be made as
soon as reasonably practicable after
receiving Royal Assent, having received
advice from the advisory body.

December 2018 Time by which the Welsh Ministers must Under section 31 of the Bill.
publish the carbon budgets for the net
Welsh emissions account for the period
2016-2020 and 2020-2025.

January 2020 Time by which the Welsh Ministers must Under section 31 of the Bill.
publish the carbon budget for the net Welsh
emissions account for the period 2025-
2030.

December 2020 NRW publish second SoNaRR. Under section 8 of the Bill.
May 2021 -- Elections to the National Assembly for Wales --

June 2021 The Welsh Ministers begin first review of Under section 9 of the Bill.
NNRP.

January 2025 Time by which the Welsh Ministers must Under section 31 of the Bill.
publish the carbon budget for the net Welsh
emissions account for the period 2030-
2035.

January 2030 Time by which the Welsh Ministers must Under section 31 of the Bill.
publish the carbon budget for the net Welsh
emissions account for the period 2035-
2040.

January 2035 Time by which the Welsh Ministers must Under section 31 of the Bill.
publish the carbon budget for the net Welsh
emissions account for the period 2040-
2045.

Tudalen y pecyn 44
Page 2 of 3



Environment (Wales) Bill Commencement and subordinate legislation

January 2040 Time by which the Welsh Ministers must Under section 31 of the Bill.
publish the carbon budget for the net Welsh
emissions account for the period 2045-
2050.

Tudalen ecyn 45
Page gg‘ 3 y



Eitem 3

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 46



National Assembly for Wales

Environment and Sustainability Committee
EB 41

Environment (Wales) Bill

Response from Natural Resources Wales

Cyfoeth
Naturiol
Cymru
Natural
Resources
Wales

Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales

Written evidence to Environment and Sustainability committee — General principles of
the Environment (Wales) Bill.

June 2015
SUMMARY

The creation of Natural Resources Wales (NRW) was the first step towards the integrated
management of Wales’ natural resources. We are developing Natural Resource
Management (NRM) as the core approach to the delivery of all our responsibilities.
Nevertheless, not all our functional legislation facilitates this way of working. We welcome
the introduction of the Environment Bill as it represents the key second step on the journey
towards integrated and sustainable management of natural resources. This Bill, along with
the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act and the Planning Bill, places sustainable
development at the heart of strategic decision making across Wales not just in NRW but
across the wider public, private and third sector. Everyone will need to grasp the new ways
of working set out in the Environment Bill if we are to find innovative solutions to the biggest
challenges facing the natural resources of Wales.

The need for the legislation:

1. Our air, land, water, wildlife, plants and soil — our ‘natural resources’ — provide us
with our basic needs, including food, energy, health and enjoyment. When cared for
in the right way, they can help us to reduce flooding, improve air quality and supply
material for construction. They also provide a home for some rare and beautiful
wildlife and iconic landscapes, which improve our wellbeing and boost the economy
via tourism.

2. But these natural resources are coming under increasing pressure — from climate
change, from a growing population and from the need for energy production,
amongst others.

3. Decades of work to understand, protect and improve our environment have taken us
a long way.

4. Yet despite this, the continuing decline in biodiversity and the threats to the ability of
our natural resources to continue to deliver benefits to society, poses a significant
risk to the well-being of Wales. The evidence we present in our report Snapshot of
the State of Wales’ Natural Resources (Annex 1), underlines the need for a step-
change in the approach to natural resource management by all parts of the
public, private and third sector in Wales.

5. Much of the environmental legislation governing the work of NRW is functional and
does not facilitate more integrated and flexible approaches to the management of our
natural resources.

Tudalen y pecyn 64



6.

Part One of the Environment Bill builds on the best Welsh and international evidence
base. We believe the provisions will facilitate a flexible and adaptive approach to
secure the integrated and sustainable management of natural resources in Wales.
The definition of sustainable management of natural resources in Section 3 and the
principles set out in Section 4 of the Bill are clearly aligned to the Ecosystem
Approach principles defined by the UN in the Convention on Biological Diversity. We
support the definition and principles.

Section 5 of the Bill refines our general purpose to align it to the definition of
sustainable natural resource management and the principles. We are happy with the
proposed changes, as the new purpose aligns much more closely with our long term
vision for our organisation. Nevertheless, we recognise that the new purpose will
not change our underpinning functional legislation but provides a more helpful
framework to develop NRM ways of working.

Implementation

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The management of our natural resources is a shared responsibility not just the
concern of NRW.

At the moment public bodies and other organisations are focussing on their specific
responsibilities or duties under the WFG Act and perceive that the proposals in the
Environment Bill relate solely to NRW. Unless this gap in understanding is
addressed, it is likely to create major challenges for implementation.

Under the WFG Act, the formation of Public Service Boards (PSBs) and inclusion of
NRW as a core member provides an important opportunity to join up and integrate
approaches to implementation.

However PSBs will not necessarily represent the interests of land managers
(agriculture and forest/woodland), the business sector or environmental NGOs. Other
arrangements may need to be developed to ensure these groups can participate
effectively.

Area Statements could provide us with an opportunity to streamline the number of
other plans that we and others produce.

Co-production and collaboration is central to how we propose to develop the State of
Natural Resources Report and Area Statements. Annex 2 and 3 set out our
propositions of how we want to work with others to produce them.

We are concerned that Section 15 of the Bill is too open ended and raises the
expectation that NRW will provide information and lead on the implementation of
area statements on behalf of other public bodies. Clarification is needed to set limits
around the assistance that NRW could be asked to provide.

Financial Implications of the Bill

16.

17.

18.

19.

The provisions in the Environment Bill are central to our purpose of delivering an
integrated approach to the sustainable management of natural resources in Wales.
As the NRW business case demonstrates, efficiency savings will be realised in the
longer term for us and our partners.

However, in the short to medium term, implementation of the requirements in
the Bill will require us to dedicate significant staff time to get through the initial
increase in work.

This investment is essential if we are to realise savings and efficiencies in the longer
term. As we develop a better understanding of the likely costs we will discuss funding
with Welsh Government.

Thereafter, NRM will be embedded across the organisation and will be at the heart of
everything we do.

Tudalen y pecyn 65



The Environment (Wales) Bill is a once-in-a-generation opportunity. Taking a joined up
approach to managing our natural resources will help us to tackle old problems in new ways.
To find better solutions to the challenges we face — and create a more successful, healthy
and resilient Wales, now and in the future.

1. Introduction

1.1 Many of the proposals in the Bill are central to the role and remit of NRW. Our
response is divided into eight sections in line with the Parts of the Bill. We have used the
Committee’s term of reference to structure our response. We have addressed questions two
and three in our sections on ‘Proposals’ and ‘Implementation’. Question four is addressed for
each part, in paras 2.4, 3.2, 5.4, 6.2, 7.2 and 8.5 below. We do not think it is our role to
address question five. We have provided more detail on the proposals on sustainable natural
resource management, waste and flood risk management. The covering note cross
references the different sections of this submission with the terms of reference and
consultation questions defined by the Environment and Sustainability Committee.

2. Part one — Sustainable management of natural resources
2.1 The need for the legislation

2.1.1  Our air, land, water, wildlife, plants and soil — our ‘natural resources’ - provide us with
our basic needs, including food, energy, health and enjoyment. When cared for in the right
way, they can help us to reduce flooding, improve air quality and supply materials for
construction. They also provide a home for some rare and beautiful wildlife and iconic
landscapes we can enjoy and which boost the economy via tourism.

2.1.2 The scale of the challenges facing our natural resources in Wales is demonstrated in
our report, Snapshot of the State of Wales’ Natural Resources (Annex 1) which sets out the
latest evidence from our monitoring of natural resources across Wales. Decades of work to
understand, protect and improve our environment have taken us a long way. But these
natural resources are coming under increasing pressure — from climate change, from a
growing population and from the need for energy production.

2.1.3 In 2010, Wales, alongside other administrations in the UK and Europe, failed to meet
international biodiversity targets agreed under the UN Convention on Biological Diversity’
and triggered a number of government led reviews in Wales?, Westminster? and Brussels*°.
The policy and scientific consensus that emerged underlined the need for a more integrated
approach to the management of natural resources, focussing much more explicitly on the
benefits to society of resilient ecosystems and the need for flexible, adaptive
management.

2.1.4 Much of the environmental legislation governing the work of NRW is functional and
does not facilitate the integrated, flexible and adaptive approaches to the management of
our natural resources identified as so important in the policy and scientific evidence. The
proposals in the Environment Bill, along with the WFG Act, Planning Bill, and UK Marine and
Coastal Access Act (2009) provide the legislative framework to drive adaptive management
of our natural resources in Wales allowing us to look at the whole picture.

2.2 Proposals for Sustainable Management of Natural Resources

12010 Biodiversity Target: https://www.cbd.int/2010-target/about.shtml

2 http://www.assembly.wales/Laid%20Documents/CR-LD8384%20-
%20Sustainability%20Committee%20Inquiry%20into%20biodiversity%20in%20Wales-31012011-208859/cr-
1d8384-e-English.pdf

3 http://uknea.unep-weme.org/Resources/tabid/82/Default.aspx

4 EC 2020 Biodiversity Strategy: http://ec.europa.eu/environment/nature/biodiversity/comm2006/2020.htm

5 EC Green infrastructure Strategy: http://ec.europa.eu/environment/nature/ecosystems/index _en.htm

Tudalen y pecyn 66



2.2.1 If we are to secure new solutions to old problems we must encourage innovation and
creative problem solving by working with others. The Environment Bill along with the WFG
Act and Planning Bill facilitates such an approach. We anticipate the need for additional
legislation in the future as we gather more evidence and learn from the early implementation
of Area Statements.

2.2.2 The definition of sustainable management of natural resources in S3(1) and S3(2)
and the principles set out in Section 4 of the Bill are clearly aligned to the principles defined
by the UN Convention on Biological Diversity. We support these proposals.

2.2.3 S5(2) of the Bill refines our general purpose to align it to the definition of sustainable
natural resource management and the principles. We are happy with the proposed changes,
as the purpose aligns much more closely with our long term vision for the organisation:

Proud to be leading the way to a better future for Wales by managing the
environment and natural resources sustainably.

Nevertheless, it is important to recognise that the proposed change will not alter our
underpinning functional legislation. The revised purpose serves an important role in clearly
defining a framework in which we can develop NRM ways of working across the organisation
and with other parts of the public, private and third sector in Wales.

2.2.4 We welcome the proposals in Section 6 of the Bill for a revised biodiversity duty for
Public Bodies. Strengthening the current biodiversity duty is critically important because it
will ensure that the wider public sector integrate the principles of sustainable management
of natural resources and the resilience of ecosystems within their decision making
processes. The improved accountability resulting from the introduction of tri-annual reporting
on compliance with the duty will also address a gap identified in the 2010 Defra review of the
biodiversity duty.

2.2.5 On the specific requirements in the Bill for the sustainable management of natural
resources, we welcome the proposals in Section 8, 9 and 10 of the Bill which set out a
flexible legislative framework to facilitate adaptive management of our natural resources:

1. The State of Natural Resources Report (SoNaRR) will be developed by NRW and
will set out the current evidence base and the potential risks to the ability of natural
resources to deliver long-term benefits for the wellbeing of Wales. Developed
collaboratively, SoNaRR will help set the scene, will look ahead, and will prompt and be
a catalyst for change. Our proposal for developing the first statutory SoNaRR is
contained in Annex 2.

2. The National Natural Resources Policy (NNRP) will be developed by Welsh
Government and will need to set the vision and “plan” for managing the issues and
opportunities associated with Wales’ natural resources. We believe this document plays
a critical role. It needs to be clear on:

a. priorities and outcomes without prescribing the activity or means of delivery;
b. tackling conflicts at the national level through the integration of policy;
c. alignment of funding mechanisms.

In practice, we believe that the NNRP will be critical to driving integration and efficiency,
addressing the conflicts and strategic challenges around the use and management of
natural resources at national and local levels. If this does not happen there is a risk that
Area Statements will get bogged down, trying to resolve issues locally when they really
need to be addressed nationally.

Tudalen y pecyn 67



3. The Area Statements developed by NRW will facilitate local action and delivery of the
national priorities using the NRM approach. Developed collaboratively, Area
Statements will be evidence based — drawing upon evidence at the catchment and
landscape scale as well as more local information. It will drive action to the appropriate
level of decision making. We will use them as vehicle to engage people, communities
and stakeholders in decision making. It will also need to put in place systems to monitor
activity and report on outcomes. In the last 18 months we have set up three NRM trials
to test and develop practical approaches to the implementation of NRM across Wales,
to inform future development of Area Statements. Our proposal for taking these forward
is contained in Annex 3.

4. The second SoNaRR will then capture the evidence obtained from both local delivery
(Area Statements) and the overall national picture.

2.2.6 The Area Statements will also help us understand any barriers to adopting a more
integrated approach to the management of natural resources. For example, working with a
particular group of people in a place may highlight that a specific piece of legislation is
driving a way of working that has a negative impact on the environment. Using this evidence,
NRW will review if our guidance or interpretation of the law is the cause of the problem. In
this situation we would work with stakeholders to revise our guidance, in line with our
commitment to adaptive management. If the under-pinning legislation is the source of the
problem, then the provisions in S22(1c) and S23(3) of the Bill will allow us to put a case to
Welsh Ministers to temporarily suspend the specific piece of legislation. If we secure
Ministerial agreement, we expect to continually monitor and review progress and will report
to Ministers with recommendations which either support a future case for legislative change
or not. These provisions therefore allow for adaptive management and governance.

2.2.7 Co-production is one of the central principles of sustainable management of natural
resources as reflected in Section 4c of the Bill. We are committed to working collaboratively
with a wide range of stakeholders in order to better identify environmental problems and
solutions. This is not always simple or straight forward and we welcome the provisions in
Sections 12, 13 and 14 of the Bill to place a clear duty on the wider public sector to work with
us to prepare SoNaRR and Area Statements. Although we recognise that we must support
other parts of the public sector with the provision of information and evidence, we are
concerned that Section 15 is too open ended, and raises the expectation that NRW will
provide information and lead delivery of Area Statements for other public bodies.

2.2.8 We welcome Sections 16-21 that set out revised powers for entering into
management agreements for the achievement of any of our functions. Our current powers
are limited to nature conservation, landscape and recreation interests. We consider this
change will complement the set of tools needed to manage natural resources adaptively.
Some examples of how these may be applied include:

o Permitting flooding of land in order to complement or even reduce the need for hard
flood defences.

e Management agreement with landowners to block up drains to restore peat bogs.
Furthermore funding could be derived from water companies if a saving in water
treatment costs for sediment removal was identified.

¢ Management agreement with a private woodland owner to manage their woodlands
and sell timber, or to include sales of timber in NRW e-sales auctions i.e. act as a
broker for private woodlands and timber purchasers.

Tudalen y pecyn 68



These could potentially be considered forms of “payments for ecosystem services”.

2.3 Implementation

2.3.1 We are concerned that public bodies and businesses may not yet fully appreciate the
importance of looking at the Environment Bill alongside the WFG Act, Planning Bill, and
Marine and Coastal Access Act, and do not understand the linkages and flows of information
between the “products” produced under each piece of legislation. At the moment
organisations are focussing on their specific responsibilities or duties under the WFG Act
and perceive that the proposals in the Environment Bill relate solely to NRW. Unless this
gap in understanding is addressed now, it is likely to create major challenges for
implementation. Of equal importance is the risk of duplication, missing major opportunities
for streamlined and efficient sharing of information and evidence.

2.3.2 Under the WFG Act, the formation of PSBs and inclusion of NRW as a core member,
provides an important opportunity to join up and integrate approaches to enable the
implementation of provisions in the Environment Bill. We recognise the value of using the
PSBs to foster a common understanding of the opportunities and benefits in a particular
place. There will be opportunities to share evidence from both SoNaRR and the Area
Statements to inform the preparation of needs assessments and well-being plans. However,
it is important to recognise that PSBs will not necessarily represent the interests of land
managers (agriculture and forest/woodland), the business sector or environmental NGOs.
These are potentially significant gaps. It may therefore be necessary to develop other
governance mechanisms linked to PSBs to facilitate decision making or in some cases,
create separate processes.

2.3.3 Our approach to Area Statement will need to be flexible. It will vary according to the
priorities identified in the National Natural Resources Policy, the type of resource at stake,
the location and the stakeholders involved (see Annex 3). We will draw on the learning from
catchment approaches to managing our water environment. Catchment approaches are
evolving to consider landscape scale solutions as they address such difficult issues as
diffuse pollution. We recognise that our underpinning environmental evidence will normally
be at a catchment or a landscape scale. But we may need to translate this to different spatial
scales to make it more meaningful and compelling for the people, communities and decision
makers we need to work with in the spirit of the principles of sustainable natural resource
management.

2.3.4 We recognise that the Area Statements could provide us with an opportunity to
streamline the number of other plans that we and others produce. It means that issues which
have traditionally been covered in a separate functional plan could be included in the Area
Statement and no longer be produced separately. This will be a change for our staff as well
as affected partners and stakeholders. Nevertheless, it is important to recognise that a
number of plans that we produce are required under EU Directives with clearly defined
requirements. Subsuming these within the Area Statements will require a longer time frame.
The scope for including other plans within an Area Statement will also be very sensitive to
the geographical scale and the timetable for their production. This will require careful
negotiation with Welsh Government as well as other partners and stakeholders.

2.3.5 We believe the requirement in the Bill S10(6) for NRW to consider whether “another
plan, strategy or similar document should be incorporated into the Area Statement” is
appropriate, and should extend to plans and strategies beyond the jurisdiction of NRW. The
drive to ensure integration can be aided further through the use of the S13 power to issue
guidance to other public bodies, and the S14(2) power for NRW to request assistance. It

Tudalen y pecyn 69



may be simpler and stronger to have a duty on public bodies to consider for themselves
where and how they could implement measures through their existing plans and
programmes.

24 Financial implications of Part 1 — Sustainable Management of Natural
Resources for NRW

2.41 Through the development of the Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA) by Welsh
Government in the summer and autumn of 2014, NRW staff have provided advice and
evidence to inform the approach, assumptions and costs underpinning the Natural Resource
Management aspects. We provided the best information available to us at the time. The RIA
sets out four options for implementation of the Area Statements. We acknowledge that these
were developed as illustrative examples and should not be seen as NRW’s preferred
approach. As we have refreshed our own NRM transformational programme, we have
developed a better understanding of the scale of the changes we need to implement such as
IT, staff training, new systems and process to develop Area Statements. These will
undoubtedly incur additional costs which we are currently estimating.

2.4.2 Asthe NRW business case demonstrates, efficiency saving will be realised in the
longer term for us and our partners. Nevertheless, in the short to medium term the
Environment Bill will require us to invest staff time and money to realise savings and
efficiencies in the longer term. Thereafter, NRM will be embedded across the organisation
and will be at the heart of everything we do. As we develop a better understanding of the
likely costs we will discuss funding with Welsh Government.

3. Part Two: Climate change

3.1 The need for the legislation

3.1.1  We believe the Part 2 provisions provide an appropriate framework for the
development of climate change targets and carbon budgets for Wales. In early 2014 we
recommended the consideration of statutory Welsh climate change targets. In the Ministerial
briefing we stated that “Statutory emission reduction targets in Wales would raise their
profile, but more importantly would be a clear signal across government departments and
beyond of the imperative of ensuring they are met”.

3.1.2 Statutory emission reduction targets foster long term and robust strategies, policies
and investments by the public sector, business and industry to ensure their compliance with
the targets. It provides a greater degree of certainty for business, acting as a clear signal of
future intent that should provide confidence for expansion of the green economy.

3.1.3 Other devolved administrations that have climate change mitigation targets also have
provisions for adaptation as well. The UK Act includes statutory requirement for a 5-yearly
reviewed National Adaptation Plan for England and the Scottish Act makes requirement for
Scottish Ministers to produce an adaptation programme, report on progress and update.

3.1.4 We recognise that Part 1 of the Environment Bill includes principles of ‘manage
adaptively’ ‘take account of the short, medium and long-term consequences’, ‘take account
of the resilience of ecosystems’ including ‘the adaptability of ecosystems’. We also note that
the NNRP must consider climate change mitigation and adaptation. It follows that the Area
Statements will need to specifically address climate change. The WFG Act by implication
also requires public bodies to consider long-term and preventative measures in the exercise
of their duties under that Act. Together we acknowledge this constitutes a programme for
adaptation.

Tudalen y pecyn 70



3.1.5 However in the absence of a specific National Adaptation Programme, Welsh
Ministers may wish to consider whether by integrating programmes for adaptation into these
functions, all sectors are covered. Careful monitoring will need to take place to assess
whether there may be gaps. If any gaps emerge appropriate mechanisms should be put in
place to address those gaps.

3.2 Financial implications of Part 2 for NRW - Climate Change

3.2.1  We will inevitably be drawn into activities in relation to Part 2 of the Bill in several
ways, for example, providing information and advice in the setting, monitoring and
achievement of targets. This would be consistent with our current roles and functions.

3.2.2 In our remit letter for 2015-16 Welsh Government has provided us with £825,000
specifically to examine how we might become a “carbon positive” organisation. In
undertaking this work, we expect to gain a better understanding of the financial implications
for NRW.

4. Part Three: Charges for Carrier Bags

4.1 We are supportive of the additional powers for Welsh Minsters to charge for other
carrier bags. We believe this change will further support the incentive for reuse, thus
safeguarding valuable resources. Reducing the number of bio-degradable carrier bags in
use across Wales will, over time, reduce the number littering our rivers, beaches and marine
environments and inadvertently entering the food chain. This measure provides a useful
mechanism to establish and raise awareness of the behaviour change necessary to deliver
Welsh Government ambition for zero waste.

4.2 We would support a policy preference for environmental good causes to benefit from
the proceeds of the carrier bag charges. We recognise a possible role for NRW to work with
environmental charities to help inform how such monies could be put to best use to
maximise the benefits for the environment and people of Wales.

4.3 There are no cost implications on NRW of this Part.

5 Part Four: Collection and Disposal of Waste

5.1 The need for the legislation

5.1.1 We believe the proposals will assist delivery of Towards Zero Waste policy objectives
and increase the quantity and quality of recyclates, supporting the establishment of a circular
economy in Wales.

5.1.2 The focus of many of the policy and legislative drivers to date has been on municipal
waste. This has been very successful, with Local Authorities collectively achieving 54%
recycling rate last year. However, household waste accounts for just 16% of the overall waste
produced in Wales. The vast majority of waste is generated by the industrial, commercial,
construction and demolition sectors. The proposals will apply to all waste streams and hence
has implications for all sectors.

5.1.3 The existing separate collection regulations are limited in effectiveness as they only
place a requirement on waste collection operators, including private companies, social

Tudalen y pecyn 71



enterprises and local authorities, to provide their customers with separate collections for
paper, metal, plastic and glass. There is no direct responsibility for the producer to participate.

5.1.4 Any change to waste legislation must take care to avoid any perverse environmental
or economic outcomes. Such issues could result, in part, from the lack of suitable treatment
/reprocessing facilities within Wales and further afield. Whilst we strongly support the
principles of waste recovery and the obvious benefits to the economy and environment of
Wales from the appropriate recycling of wastes as a resource, this can only be in the context
of wastes being managed appropriately, with necessary environmental safeguards.

5.2 Proposals for separate collection and disposal of waste

5.2.1 We believe the proposals in Section 66 to require non-domestic premises to put their
waste out for collection, will provide a clearer and more enforceable framework.

5.2.2 We support the proposals for materials, such as food waste, to be collected
separately. This will divert these materials from disposal at landfill or incineration, enabling a
useful resource to be captured and recovered/recycled. Any proposed changes would
require detailed modelling and the benefits of international experience where available, to
ensure that all potential outcomes - positive and negative - are identified to avoid perverse
consequences.

5.2.3 The inclusion of wider powers to ban some recyclable waste from incineration set out
in Section 68 is sensible and working in conjunction with proposed landfill bans, would
provide a useful additional driver to ensure resources are not wasted. This will also provide
flexibility for the Welsh Government to modify the legislative regime in support of future
policy objectives. The consequence of any future proposed changes would need to be fully
considered (as in this case) before introduction.

5.2.4 In addition, when considering Local Authority Recovery Targets, Landfill Allowances
Scheme and landfill tax, it is not yet clear that further regulatory interventions are necessary.
We would like to see further voluntary measures to increase participation in recycling (for
businesses) and by the waste industry considered alongside proposals for regulation and
enforcement. These measures aim to change behaviour and so there is also a need for
education to effect behaviour change, by Welsh Government, waste service providers
(private sector and Local Authorities), and other appropriate bodies including NRW.

5.3 Implementation

5.3.1  We will continue to work with Welsh Government to provide technical information and
to advise on the practical implications of the proposed changes. ltis likely that the
provisions will require NRW to produce advice, guidance and training for our staff as well as
for our customers. Some permits and compliance assessment tools will need to be varied to
take account of the additional requirements. These new duties will also require additional
inspection of waste producers.

5.3.2 To ensure that the implementation of these requirements are effective it is important
that Welsh Government provide adequate funding to the regulator to enable an appropriate
compliance and enforcement regime.

5.3.3 Whilst we support the proposal in Section 67 to ban food waste from disposal at
sewer, we do not believe NRW is the most appropriate body to regulate. We would have
limited interaction with the businesses affected by this requirement; sewerage undertakers or
Local Authority food hygiene inspectors may be better placed to regulate this.

Tudalen y pecyn 72



5.3.4 Some small businesses may have limited space for separate recycling bins for all the
waste streams. Also, if only small quantities of some waste categories are produced, small
businesses may have difficulty obtaining a waste contractor at an economic rate. Early
feedback from companies surveyed as part of the 2012 waste arisings survey has indicated
that companies are already recycling and segregating where it is economic to do so,
whereas small businesses find this more challenging. There may be opportunities to
innovate. For example, drawing on initiatives from Europe where street-level recycling
schemes operate for small businesses. Collection system providers could also adapt their
service with encouragement from Welsh Government, prompting the markets to respond and
adapt to these changes so that this material is appropriately managed and recycled and
recovered in a timely fashion, avoiding unnecessary stockpiling of material.

5.3.5 We are happy to work with Welsh Government and the Waste and Resources Action
Programme to consider how we can aid waste producers, particularly small businesses, and
to ensure that waste management service providers understand the new requirements and
adapt their waste management practises.

5.3.6  Within our offices and facilities we want to help the move towards a circular economy
in Wales, though our own actions in relation to our own use of resources. We already
actively manage our waste aiming to minimise waste at source and ensuring any waste we
do produce is stored securely, segregated and transferred for recycling. We are happy to
share the experience we have had with others.

5.4 Financial Implications of Part 4 Collection and disposal of waste for NRW

5.4.1 We have worked with Welsh Government in their development of the indicative
regulatory impact assessment to consider the implications of the waste provisions on NRW.
We are happy that the indicative costs presented provide a reasonable reflection of the costs
we may incur implementing these new regulatory duties. The provisions included in the Bill
will allow Welsh Government to develop regulations. Additional information related to the
implementation of these regulations will also be available. We understand that the
regulations will be subject to a further RIA. This process will refine the cost estimates and
provide us with greater certainty on the likely costs we will incur.

6 Part Five: Fisheries for shellfish
6.1 Need for the legislation

6.1.1 We believe the changes proposed in the Bill will help to enhance the management
and protection of marine protected areas and the wider marine environment.

6.1.2 Currently the Sea Fisheries (Shellfish) Act 1967 grants the Minister the powers to
issue a certificate to the grantee of a Several or Regulating Order to cease activities within
the prescribed area in which their rights are exercisable, only if they are not properly
cultivating the ground. The new proposals will strengthen and widen the Minister’s ability to
intervene in the operation of a Several or Regulating Order if it is perceived the grantee’s
activities or external circumstances such as impacts from non-native species are causing
environmental harm by the issuing of a Site Protection Notice.

6.2 Financial implications of Part five for NRW - fisheries for shellfish

10
Tudalen y pecyn 73



6.2.1 There are minimal cost implications on NRW of this Part. NRW may be required to
provide evidence to help determine whether environmental harm would occur.

7 Part Six: Marine Licensing
71 Need for the legislation - Marine Licensing

7.1.1  We agree that having a wider suite of charging powers will allow NRW to achieve
greater cost recovery in undertaking its delegated functions under the Marine Licensing
regime. This will enable NRW to continue to offer services such as more thorough pre-
application advice, which will benefit both the applicant and NRW’s licence determination
process. In summary, it will allow NRW to provide a marine licensing regime that has fairer
charges and is fit for purpose. We are part of a Welsh Government Working Group
developing the approach to implementation working with marine stakeholders across Wales.

7.2 Financial implications of Part six for NRW — Marine Licensing

7.2.1  The powers will enable cost recovery therefore having a positive financial impact on
NRW.

8 Part Seven: Miscellaneous
8.1 Need for the legislation - Flood risk management committee

8.1.1  We believe that it is appropriate to disband the current FRMW committee and replace
it with a new committee that advises at a Wales wide basis on the whole of the flood risk
management agenda. NRW is one of 28 statutory flood and coastal risk management
authorities and our current committee’s remit is limited to the activities of NRW on managing
river and coastal flood risk. The management of local sources of flooding such as surface
water and coastal erosion is led by Local Authorities in partnership with water and sewerage
companies. A wide range of infrastructure operators and resilience partners play key roles.
Therefore it is sensible to have a committee, led by and responsible to Welsh Ministers, with
the remit to look at the complete picture, to ensure investment is targeted and action
delivered in the most efficient and effective way.

8.1.2 We believe it is very important for the new committee to be a key conduit for advising
on the strategic direction for flood risk management. This includes advising on the shaping
and implementation of WG’s national Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy,
discussing the resolution of barriers to effective flood risk management and sharing of good
practice approaches.

8.2 Need for the legislation - S83. Repeal of requirements to publish in local
newspapers etc.

8.2.1 We welcome the repeal of what is now an outdated form of communication. It will
enable NRW to offer a more bespoke and effective approach to how it consults local
communities on proposals relating to its management of Internal Drainage Districts (IDDs),
such as boundary revisions, the raising and allocation of drainage rates etc.

8.3 Need for the legislation - S84. Power to make provision for appeals against
special levies

8.3.1 We welcome the addition of this appeal mechanism to the Welsh Ministers regarding
the special levies charged to Local Authorities by NRW.

11
Tudalen y pecyn 74



8.3.2 Following the transfer of functions of the Welsh Internal Drainage Boards, NRW now
sets these levies, along with land owner rates, to recover costs incurred from the exercise of
functions relating to land drainage within our IDDs. Therefore we recognise the need to
create an alternative mechanism for Local Authorities for arbitration on NRW’s IDD levy
setting.

8.4 Need for the legislation - S85. Power of entry: compliance with order for
cleansing ditches etc.

8.4.1 We welcome the intention to clarify that agents authorised by the Welsh Government
have the right of entry to land to enable investigation of alleged non-compliance with an ALT
Order in cases where access is refused by a party to that Order. There was previously no
mechanism to allow for entry to land to enable investigation

8.5 Financial Implications of Part 7. Miscellaneous — Flood Risk Management for
NRW

8.5.1 The typical annual costs for the running of NRW’s current committee are circa
£21,000. As the new committee’s remit and function will be to advise the Welsh

Government, with its Chair responsible to Welsh Ministers and secretariat provided by WG, it
will be appropriate for NRW’s flood Grant-In-Aid to reduce by that amount.

8.5.2 NRW estimates it costs £40,000 in staff time preparing papers and attending its
current committee meetings. A significant proportion of that work involves monitoring and
reporting project and financial progress on its annual flood risk management capital and
revenue programme. The Bill's proposals for the scrutiny of that work to come under the
remit of NRW’s Board means this work will continue at current levels, but reporting to a
different body. NRW is expected to play a key role in the Welsh Government’s new
committee, due to our all-Wales remit to collate and supply data on flood risk management
implementation on a strategic and operational basis. As such, we see the Bill's proposed
changes to NRW’s roles as cost neutral in terms of NRW’s future governance requirements
and input to the new committee.

9 Part 8: General
9.1 We have no comments or observations on this section.
10 Schedules

10.1  We acknowledge the inclusion of Schedule 2 Para 8 — which makes an amendment
to WFG Act so that it refers to the potential role of Area Statements as an importance
evidence base to support the well-being needs assessment.

10.2 There is a key opportunity here for the Environment Bill to help provide further clarity
around the links to the land-use planning, and marine planning systems in line with our
comments in para. 2.3.1 above. For example, we would suggest a similar amendment to the
S3. Planning (Wales) Act to ensure that s60 (5) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act (2004) (PCPA) includes reference to the NNRP.

10.3 A similar clause could be inserted at Section 6, in PCPA - 60I (6) referring to Area
Statements.

10.4 Consideration should be given to inserting a paragraph in Schedule 6 (3) of the
Marine and Coastal Access Act (2009) “Marine plans to be compatible with certain other
plans” to draw reference to the National Natural Resources Policy.

12
Tudalen y pecyn 75



Tudalen y pecyn 76

13



National Assembly for Wales Eitem 4
Environment and Sustainability Committee

EB 19

Environment (Wales) Bill

Response from UK Environmental Law Association (UKELA)

UKELA

UK ENVIRONMENTAL LAW ASSOCIATION

The Environment (Wales) Bill

Evidence Paper to the National Assembly for Wales’s Environment and
Sustainability Committee

Introduction

The UK Environmental Law Association (UKELA) aims to make the law work for
a better environment and to improve understanding and awareness of
environmental law. UKELA’s members are involved in the practice, study or
formulation of environmental law in the UK and the European Union. It attracts
both lawyers and non-lawyers and has a broad membership from the private and

public sectors.

UKELA prepares advice on proposals of governments and regulators covering a
range of environmental law topics, with the help of its specialist working parties.
This response has been prepared by Gweithgor UKELA ar gyfer Cymru, the
UKELA Wales Working Party.

UKELA has only provided evidence in respect of the provisions in Part 1 of the
Bill as these are potentially the most contentious in terms of the coherence,

integration and transparency of the bill.

In general, UKELA welcomes the innovative approach to natural resource

management in Part 1 of the Bill which will have an important impact on the

Tudalen y pecyn 77



quality of the environment in Wales. However, we make some suggestions in

this evidence paper to improve the Bill in a number of respects.

2
Tudalen y pecyn 78



Summary of Evidence

UKELA has concerns about whether the bill’s definition of natural resources, which,

although it is ‘not limited’, should nonetheless specifically include landscapes.

UKELA recommends the expansion of the overall objective of Natural Resources
Wales (NRW) so as to more clearly integrate with the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

UKELA recommends the expansion of the principles of sustainable management of
natural resources to incorporate the preventive and precautionary principles and to

include public participation.

UKELA makes recommendations in relation to the biodiversity lists and the
biodiversity duty related to them so as to make the provisions clearer, in terms of the
(i) content of the duty; (ii) the applicability of the duty; and, (iii) compliance with the

duty requirements.

UKELA makes a number of recommendations relating to the National Natural
Resource Policy (NNR policy) with respect to the requirements on Welsh Ministers to

consult and designed to strengthen the duties imposed on Ministers.

UKELA also highlights the need to establish clear links between the biodiversity lists
and the ‘biodiversity’ duty on public authorities as well as those between the

biodiversity lists, the State of Natural Resources Report and the NNR policy.

UKELA recommends that the provisions on Area Statements be revised to remove
ambiguity, to better respect the need for consultation and to enhance the observance

of related duties.

UKELA generally welcomes the land management agreement provisions but
questions whether the provisions take sufficient account of existing domestic legal

obligations (including the Human Rights Act 1998).

UKELA does not consider that the case has been made for suspending certain of
NRW’s existing statutory obligations when exercising experimental powers; indeed,

this is viewed as a dangerous precedent.

3
Tudalen y pecyn 79



Detailed Evidence

Part 1: Sustainable Management of Natural Resources
Natural Resources and Sustainable Management of Natural Resources

Do you agree with the Welsh Government’s proposals on definitions for ‘natural
resources’ and ‘sustainable management of natural resources’? Are there things

missing that you think should be included?

1. This Part of the Bill sets out the objective and seeks to implement the
“ecosystem approach” contained in the UN Convention on Biological Diversity,
which defines ecosystems as “a dynamic complex of plant, animal and micro-
organisms, and their living environment interacting as a functional unit”.
However, the absence of the UN Convention definition is disappointing and
weakens the Bill. UKELA, therefore suggests that this should be included in
clause 2. Although Natural Resources are defined in that clause there is a
need to be explicit about the coverage of the Bill. In this respect, UKELA
believes that it should be extended so as explicitly to include protected
landscapes, notwithstanding the fact that the current definition is non-
exhaustive. Whist it is recognised that the sustainable management of natural
resources is a necessary condition for the protection of these assets, it is not
necessarily a sufficient condition which is why we suggest that they should be

explicitly included in the definition of natural resources in clause 2.

2. In respect of sustainable management of natural resources, the drafting of
clause 3(2) is fundamental to the overall objective of Natural Resources
Wales. It is important, therefore, to ensure that the objective is clear and
appropriate. In order to align the legislation with the provisions of the Well-
being of Future Generations Act and to emphasise the role of Natural
Resources Wales in relation to protection of biodiversity, UKELA proposes that

clause 3(2) should be expanded, to read as follows:

4
Tudalen y pecyn 80



“The objective is to maintain and enhance a bio-diverse natural
environment and healthy, resilient ecosystems, and the benefits they
provide, and in doing so, to meet the needs of the present without
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs”

Principles of sustainable management of natural resources

3. Clause 4(a) should make it clear that action should follow as a consequence of
monitoring and reviewing. It is insufficient to require a review without
provisions requiring follow up action where the review has identified
shortcomings. UKELA also suggests that the existing provisions of clause 4
should reflect the internationally agreed principles of prevention and

precaution. Therefore, we propose that clause 4 be strengthened as follows:

4(a) — adopt a preventive approach and manage adaptively by
planning, monitoring, reviewing action and taking appropriate steps

where shortcomings are evident.

4 (c) — promote and engage in collaboration and cooperation with
relevant statutory bodies and non-governmental organisations.
4 (d) — take account of all relevant evidence and where uncertainty

exists adopt a precautionary approach.

4 (f) — take account of the long-term consequences of actions as well

as the short and medium term benefits.

4. Furthermore, a new provision should be included to support public
participation, where appropriate, in decision making about the sustainable
management of natural resources, particularly in relation to the benefits and

intrinsic value of natural resources and ecosystems.

5. UKELA also has some concerns about clause 4(b), as the meaning of the term
“appropriate” is unclear. Does it refer to the most appropriate use of public
authority resources or to the most appropriate spatial organisation in terms of

the objective of resource protection?

5
Tudalen y pecyn 81



What are your views on the proposal to strengthen the biodiversity duty on public

authorities operating in Wales?

Biodiversity lists and duty to take steps to maintain and enhance

biodiversity

6. The duty under clause 6(1) is a relatively weak duty — simply requiring public
authorities to “seek to maintain and enhance biodiversity in the exercise of
their functions ... and in doing so promote the resilience of ecosystems. This
fails to ensure that the necessary actions will take place. UKELA suggests
that omission of “seek to” would strengthen the duty to achieve the desired
objective. An alternative, which may be more acceptable, would be to align the
wording with that used in the Well-being of Future Generations Act i.e. “take all

”

reasonable steps to maintain and enhance .......... .

7. In relation to clause 6(4), it is suggested that the words “Environmental
Programme” should be omitted as the accepted reference is the United

Nations Convention on Biological Diversity.

8. Clause 6(5) imposes a duty on public authorities to publish triennial reports on
how they have complied with their duties. However, the absence of a power to
ensure that these reports are published, or of any consequences of not
publishing the reports, is worrying, as this will weaken the effectiveness of the

legislation.

9. There needs to be more coherence between the definition of a public body in
clauses 11(1) and 6(6) — as drafted there is considerable potential for
confusion between the two. If s6(6) is not specific to public bodies established
in Wales, but intended to apply to all public bodies operating in Wales this
should be made clear on the face of the Bill. UKELA also considers that the
Bill should contain, somewhere in clause 6, a definition of biodiversity which is
more closely aligned with that contained in the UN Convention on Biological

Diversity.

6
Tudalen y pecyn 82



10.Clause 7(1) requires the Welsh Ministers to prepare and publish a list of living
organisms and habitat types of principal importance, and clause 7(3) imposes
a duty on Ministers to “(a) take such steps as appear to them to be reasonably
practicable to maintain and enhance the living organisms and types of habitat
included in any list published under this clause, and (b) encourage others to
take such steps”. In UKELA'’s view, it is unclear why “others” should be
amenable to encouragement since no other provision in Part 1 appears even
to require public authorities to have regard to the list let alone creates any
duties in respect of it. In UKELA’s view it should be made clear how the
information in this list is to be used, for example, by public authorities in
fulfilling the biodiversity duty, by NRW in creating the State of Natural
Resources Report or by Welsh Ministers in creating the NNR policy.

11.In addition, the absence in this clause of the need to consult interested parties
on the preparation of the list (other than Natural Resources Wales) is of
concern, particularly given the general support for public participation in
environmental decision making, and the specific references to this notion in the

explanatory memorandum.
Duty to prepare, publish and implement national resources policy

What are your views on the proposals for a National Natural Resource Policy? Is

the Bill clear enough about what this will include?

12.Clause 9 states that Welsh Ministers should publish a document setting out
general and specific polices for contributing to achieving sustainable
management of natural resources; key priorities and opportunities for NRM;
what should be done in relation to climate change; and anything else Ministers
consider relevant. Though UKELA broadly welcomes this provision, we
suggest that the risks to NRM, as well as the ‘priorities and opportunities for
NRM’ should form part of the policy content. Also it would be helpful if there
was more detail in the Bill as to what should be included in the policy more

generally. Currently, clause 9 requires only that the policy should set out “key

7
Tudalen y pecyn 83



priorities and opportunities for sustainable management of natural resources in
relation to Wales, including what they consider should be done in relation to
climate change.” There is no mention, for example, of any requirement to set
these as time-bound objectives, whether the policy should stipulate a hierarchy
for the addressing of the priorities and opportunities identified, nor to lay down
guidance on what should be done if priorities conflict (which is entirely
possible). In addition, there is no mention of the relationship between the NNR
policy and the State of Natural Resources report created by NRW. There is
also no requirement on Welsh Ministers to consult on the contents of the
document. UKELA strongly suggests that there should be a duty on Welsh
Ministers to consult on the policy at the outset. Moreover, UKELA has serious
concerns about the relatively weak duties on Welsh Ministers to “take such
steps [to implement to the policy] as appear to them to be reasonably
practicable” and “encourage others to take such steps” (clause 9(4)(a)&(b)).
UKELA suggests than an alternative, and stronger, drafting might be: “to take
all steps they consider necessary to implement the policy” and to “direct others

to take such steps”.

Area Statements
Do you agree with the proposals for area statements? What should these cover

and is the process for their development clear enough in the Bill?

13. In clause 10 the linkages between the area statements and the NNR policy are
unclear. There is also no duty on NRW to implement the policy to be prepared
and published under clause 9 and no duty on Welsh Ministers to implement
area statements, despite their obvious centrality to the implementation of the
NNR policy. UKELA believes that appropriate provisions should be introduced
into the Bill in order to ensure that NRW takes account of the policy document
and Welsh Ministers take account of area statements in exercising their
functions. Furthermore, there should be a requirement for Natural Resources
Wales to consult on their area statements, in particular with Welsh Ministers
and other relevant stakeholders, such as landowners (see paragraph 55 of the

Explanatory Memorandum re “promoting engagement with stakeholders”).

8
Tudalen y pecyn 84



Our comments in respect of relatively weak duties on Welsh Ministers in
relation to Clause 9, apply equally to the duties of NRW in respect of this
clause. Finally in relation to area statements, it seems inconsistent that
provision is made in clause 24 for changing the time requirement for the
production of the State of Natural Resources Report and National Natural
Resources Policy yet no time requirement is specified at all for the production

of area statements.

14.There is some ambiguity in the drafting of clause 12 (1) that needs to be
corrected. It is unclear as to whether the reference to “them” refers to Welsh
Ministers or a public body. Again, the absence of consultation with interests
wider than public bodies, such as landowners, is troubling, particularly as
Welsh Ministers have the power to direct public bodies to implement area
statements. UKELA welcomes the legally enforceable duty under clause 12(3)
which allows Ministers to direct a public body, and the accountability and
enforcement arrangements for the other duties listed in clauses 10 (the
preparation and publication of area statements); 13 (public bodies’ obligations
to take account of guidance in respect of area statements); and 14 and 15
(duty of public body to provide NRW with information and assistance and vice

versa).

15.There is a lack of clarity in respect of the provisions in clause 14 which oblige
public bodies to provide information and other assistance to NRW unless this
would “have an adverse effect on the exercise of the public body’s functions’
(cl.14(2)(b)). Itis not clear whether ‘an adverse effect’ could include an
adverse financial effect. UKELA considers that this contingency should be

explicitly addressed.

Land Management Agreements and Experimental Powers
Are you content with the proposals for NRW to have wider powers to enter into

land management agreements and have broader experimental powers?

16. The power for NRW to enter into a management agreement with regard to any

of its functions is eminently sensible.

9
Tudalen y pecyn 85



17.Management agreements are entered into voluntarily. However, clause 16(2)
refers to the imposition of obligations etc. This being the case an appeals

process should be provided to ensure compliance with the Human Rights Act.

18. The relationship with existing SSSI management mechanisms under section
28, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and these proposals require

further clarification.

19. UKELA notes that the clause 17 provisions on successors in title are different
to those currently used under section 15 of the Countryside Act 1968. It is not
clear why a different approach has been considered necessary nor has this
been explained in the Explanatory Memorandum entries relating to cl.17 (at
pp. 325-6).

20. UKELA notes that clauses 16-21 do not refer to management agreements
entered into in respect of European sites under regulation 16 of the

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended).

21. Proposals under clause 22 allowing the exemption or relaxing or modifying
statutory requirements for which NRW is responsible, even with consultation,
is of concern and not supported by UKELA. Such a provision would set a
dangerous precedent. The power for NRW to conduct research and
experimental schemes is sensible but no evidence has been presented that
suggests that existing statutory requirements would prove an obstacle to such

initiatives?

10
Tudalen y pecyn 86



Overarching Question

For your views on the relationship between this Bill and the Well-being of Future
Generations Act 2015 and the Planning (Wales) Bill? Are the links and connections
between them clear?

22.Though there are commendable efforts to integrate the requirements of these
‘flagship’ provisions there are some areas of inconsistency and potential

confusion.

23.Perhaps most significant in this respect is the lack of guidance on the
integration of, for example: NNR policy, well-being objectives, and the National
Development Framework; as well as area statements, local well-being

strategies and local development plans.

24.The Environment Bill imposes a biodiversity duty on all public authorities,
which are defined (in clause 6(6)) so as to include statutory undertakers.
However, statutory undertakers are not subject to well-being objective duties in
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Clearly the WFGA
provisions are set (for the time-being at least) but it does seem incongruous to
have statutory undertakers subject to the biodiversity duty but not (at least not
directly) subject to well-being duties, though we realise that this may relate to
differing obligations at international level. The point relating to the confusion
over the designation of a ‘public body’ has already been made at paragraph 9

supra.

11
Tudalen y pecyn 87



Eitem 5.2 - (7
Carl Sargeant AC / AM '“)\ / (\ ﬁ
Y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol ~
Minister for Natural Resources — ,JQ

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/Our ref CS/00816/15

Alun Ffred Jones AM

Chair - Environment and Sustainability Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff CF99 1NA

committeebusiness@Wales.GS|.Gov.UK
2 i %auhe 2015

Dear Alun,

I received your letter of 22 May regarding the appointment process for a new Chair of
Natural Resources Wales, on 27 May, some five days after a press query received by my
office on 22 May.

Your reported comments in the media went beyond those expressed in your letter, with a
suggestion the independence of NRW and its Chair have been, or are being, called into
question. If you have any evidence to support that accusation, | should be pleased to
receive it.

On the substantive point regarding the pre-appointment scrutiny by the E&S Committee, the
Welsh Government does not take the view such a process is appropriate as a general rule.
The examples you give are, of course, very different in nature and the current process to
appoint a new Chair for NRW is properly regulated by the Public Appointments
Commission. Therefore, given the Welsh Government position, | cannot agree to your
suggestion.

Yours sincerely

} .
S "'
S
Carl Sargeant AC / AM

Y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol
Minister for Natural Resources

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0300 0603300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0300 0604400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’ i pjlgydein( ip@j’(écyn 88 Printed on 100% recycled paper



Carl Sargeant AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol

G RYAMA
Minister for Natural Resources J[L/JA

Llywodraeth Cymru

Eich cyf/Your ref Welsh Government
Ein cyf/Our ref LF CS 0561 15

David Melding AC

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru

Bae Caerdydd

Caerdydd

CF99 1NA 9fed Mehefin 2015

Annwyl David

Rwyf yn ysgrifennu atoch ar Ol imi ymddangos gerbron y Pwyllgor Materion
Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol ar 1 Mehefin i roi tystiolaeth am Fil yr Amgylchedd
(Cymru). Ymrwymais bryd hynny i roi rhagor o wybodaeth ichi er mwyn helpu i esbonio’r
darpariaethau yn y Bil a sut yr wyf yn bwriadu iddynt weithredu’n ymarferol

Adran 22 — pwer i atal dros dro ofynion statudol ar gyfer cynlluniau arbrofol

Os yw hynny’n debygol o gyfrannu at reoli adnoddau naturiol yn gynaliadwy, mae adran
22 yn rhoi’r pwer i Weinidogion Cymru, o dan amgylchiadau penodol, atal dros dro
ddarpariaeth neu ddarpariaethau mewn deddfwriaeth. Bydd hynny’n galluogi Cyfoeth
Naturiol Cymru (“CNC”), lle bo angen, i ymgymryd & chynllun arbrofol (fel y darperir ar ei
gyfer yn adran 23 o'’r Bil).

Mae atal darpariaeth neu ddarpariaethau dros dro yn golygu, i bob pwrpas, bod person
yn cael ei esemptio rhag bodloni gofyniad statudol, neu fod y gofyniad yn cael ei lacio fel
y mae’n gymwys i'r person hwnnw.

Mae’r Bil yn darparu ar gyfer nifer o ffyrdd o sicrhau bod y pwer hwn yn cael ei
ddefnyddio’n briodol.

e Dimond ar 8l i CNC wneud cais manwl y caiff Gweinidogion Cymru arfer y pwer.

¢ Rhaid i’r ataliad dros dro fod yn gysylltiedig a chynllun penodol ac felly a
chymhwyso darpariaeth mewn perthynas &'r parti neu’r partion a fydd yn
gysylitiedig &’r cynllun. Nid yw, mewn unrhyw fodd, yn ataliad dros dro cyffredinol.

¢ Ni cheir darparu ar gyfer ataliad dros dro oni fydd yn angenrheidiol er mwyn
hwyluso’r cynllun. Rhaid i’r cynllun ei hun fod yn berthnasol i arfer swyddogaethau
statudol CNC.

Bae Caerdydd . Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0300 0603300
Caerdydd . Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0300 0604400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i qilgyédem (1 @Bgyn 89  Printed on 100% recycled paper



e Ni chaiff yr ataliad dros dro bara mwy na thair blynedd. Bydd dyletswydd i
ymgynghori, a bydd rhaid defnyddio’r weithdrefn penderfyniad Cadarnhaol.

Heblaw hynny, nid yw'r pwer ond yn berthnasol i ddeddfwriaeth lle mae CNC yn gyfrifol
am gymhwyso darpariaeth statudol, neu lle mae’r ddarpariaeth statudol yn gymwys i
CNC ac i'r modd y caiff adnoddau naturiol eu rheoli neu eu defnyddio, neu’n gymwys i’r
dibenion y céant eu rheoli neu eu defnyddio ar eu cyfer. Mae'r pwer, felly, yn gyfyngedig i
ddeddfwriaeth sy’n ymwneud & swyddogaethau penodol CNC.

Bydd fy adran yn cydweithio’'n agos & CNC i sicrhau ei fod yn gwbl glir am y broses ar
gyfer gwneud cais o’r fath i Weinidogion Cymru. Byddwn yn disgwyl i unrhyw gais gan
CNC gynnwys yr wybodaeth a ganlyn:

e Manylion am yr hyn y byddai’r cynllun arbrofol arfaethedig yn ei olygu, ei amcanion
ac am ba hyd y disgwylid iddo barhau;

e Pam, neu ym mha ffordd, y byddai’r ddarpariaeth neu’r darpariaethau y bydd CNC
wedi eu nodi yn rhwystr cyfreithiol i’r cynllun y mae’n bwriadu ymgymryd ag ef;

e Gwybodaeth amy partion a fydd yn gysylltiedig &'r cynllun, gan gynnwys sut 'y
byddant yn gysyllitiedig ag ef;

e Asesiad o sut y bydd atal y ddarpariaeth neu’r darpariaethau o gymorth i reoli
adnoddau naturiol yn gynaliadwy;

¢ Gwybodaeth ynghylch sut y bydd y cynllun yn cael ei fonitro.

Byddai Gweinidogion Cymru yn mynd ati wedyn i ystyried y cais. Fel y nodwyd, byddai’'n
rhaid i Weinidogion Cymru fod yn gwbl fodlon bod angen yr ataliad dros dro fel y bo
modd ymgymryd & chynllun arbrofol, a bod y cynllun hwnnw’n debygol o gyfrannu at reoli
adnoddau naturiol yn gynaliadwy. Wrth ystyried, bydd yn rhaid hefyd i Weinidogion
Cymru ymgynghori &’r rheini y byddai’r ddarpariaeth yn effeithio arnynt ac &’r rheini y
byddai’r cynllun arbrofol yn effeithio arnynt.

Os bydd Gweinidogion Cymru yn fodlon y bydd y cynllun hwnnw yn cyfrannu at reoli
adnoddau naturiol yn gynaliadwy, bydd yn rhaid cael cytundeb y Cynulliad drwy’r
weithdrefn Gadarnhaol cyn iddynt fedru defnyddio’r pwer.

Ataliad dros dro ydyw: ni fydd yn cael para mwy na thair blynedd a bydd modd estyn y
cyfnod hwnnw, ond dim mwy nag unwaith, am gyfnod arall o hyd at dair blynedd. Mewn
achos o’r fath, byddai’r ataliad dros dro yn ei le am chwe blynedd ar y mwyaf.

Os hoffech gael rhagor o wybodaeth ynghylch o dan ba amgylchiadau y gallai CNC fod
yn dymuno gwneud cais o’r fath, dylech gyfeirio at y Memorandwm Esboniadol, ac aty
Datganiad o Fwriad y Polisi a’r enghreifftiau a roddir yn yr Atodiad i’r datganiad hwnnw..

Bwriad v polisi mewn perthynas &’r newid yn yr hinsawdd ac unedau carbon, a rhagor o
wybodaeth am fasnachu carbon.

Fel y dywedais yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor ar 1 Mehefin, mae’n dealltwriaeth o’r newid yn
yr hinsawdd ac o ffyrdd i fynd i'r afael ag ef yn datblygu’n barhaus, ac mae’n hanfodol ein
bod yn gallu ymateb yn gyflym i’r datblygiadau hynny. Drafftiwyd y darpariaethau yn y Bil
mewn modd a fydd yn caniatau inni wneud hynny.

Mae adrannau 33 a 34 o’r Bil yn amlinellu sut y byddwn yn cyfrifo ‘allyriadau Cymru’.
Byddwn yn gwneud hynny drwy sefydlu ‘cyfrif allyriadau net Cymru’.

Tudalen y pecyn 90



Caiff ‘cyfrif allyriadau net Cymru’ ei gyfrifo'n rhannol drwy ychwanegu a thynnu unedau
carbon.

Mae adran 36 yn caniatdu i 'unedau carbon' gael eu diffinio mewn rheoliadau ond cyfyngir y
pwer hwnnw i dri math o uned carbon. O fewn pob cynllun masnachu allyriadau cynhwysir
allyriadau nwyon ty gwydr sy’n cael eu rheoleiddio. Caiff y rheini eu diffinio fel uned carbon
at ddibenion ‘cyfrif allyriadau net Cymru’.

Wrth imi ysgrifennu’r llythyr hwn, y bwriad yw y bydd y diffiniad yn unedau o garbon y gellir
eu masnachu, er enghraifft, yn yr un modd ag yng Nghynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r UE (EU
ETS). Mae’r EU ETS yn gweithio ar sail yr egwyddor 'capio a masnachu'. Caiff 'cap’, neu
derfyn ei osod ar gyfanswm y nwyon ty gwydr penodol y caiff ffatrioedd, gweithfeydd pwer a
gweithfeydd eraill yn y system eu hallyrru. Caiff y cap ei leihau dros amser fel y bo
cyfanswm yr allyriadau’n gostwng.

Mae'r EU ETS yn gweithredu mewn cyfnodau, a chaiff ei adolygu’n rheolaidd gan y
Comisiwn Ewropeaidd. Gallai newidiadau a gyflwynir gan y Comisiwn olygu y byddai angen
newid y modd y caiff carbon ei gyfrifo o dan y Bil. Dyna un o’r enghreifftiau y gall yr
adrannau hyn ddarparu ar eu cyfer.

Wrth ddrafftio darpariaethau perthnasol y Bil, gwyddem fod yn rhaid wrth y gallu i addasu
unrhyw ddulliau rheoleiddiol o fynd i’r afael &'r newid yn yr hinsawdd, a hynny er mwyn
darparu ar gyfer y ffaith bod darganfyddiadau gwyddonol a thechnolegol newydd yn dod
i’ramlwg a bod cytundebau newydd yn cael eu gwneud ar y lefel ryngwladol ac is-
genedlaethol. Un enghraifft fydd Cynhadledd Confensiwn Fframwaith y Cenhedloedd
Unedig ar Newid yn yr Hinsawdd 2015 (‘UNFCCC’) a fydd yn cael ei chynnal ym Mharis
ym mis Rhagfyr eleni (ac a elwir yn ‘COP21’). Mae’n bosibl hefyd y bydd blaenraglen
waith y Cenhedloedd Unedig ar Leihau Allyriadau sy’n deillio o Ddatgoedwigo a Dirywiad
Coedwigoedd ('REDD') yn arwain at gytundebau rhyngwladol newydd a fydd yn rhai
rhwymol. Yma yn y DU, mae Cod Carbon Coetiroedd y DU a chynllun peilot Cod
Mawndiroedd y DU yn enghreifftiau da o feysydd lle gellid gweld datblygiadau yn y
dyfodol y bydd angen inni eu hystyried o ran yr effaith y byddant yn ei chael ar gyfrif
allyriadau net Cymru.

Ychydig o enghreifftiau yn unig yw’r rhain, a chan y gallwn fod yn gwbl sicr y bydd rhagor
o enghreifftiau yn y dyfodol, nid oeddem yn ei ystyried yn briodol cynnwys diffiniad ar
wyneb y Bil. Mae peidio & gwneud hynny yn golygu y byddwn yn gallu addasu’r diffiniad
er mwyn ystyried newidiadau ar lefel ryngwladol, Ewropeaidd neu ddomestig.

Fel y nodwyd yn y Datganiad am Fwriad y Polisi, byddwn am wneud y rheoliadau hynny
cyn gynted ag y bydd hynny’n ymarferol. Byddai’r gwaith hwnnw, o reidrwydd, yn
dechnegol gymhleth, ac yn teilyngu cael ei ystyried a’i ddadansoddi’n ofalus. Fodd
bynnag, byddai fy adran yn ymgymryd &’r gwaith hwnnw ochr yn ochr &’r gwaith ar
bennu’r cyllidebau carbon pum mlynedd.

Sut v mae cyfraith Cymru ar daliadau am fagiau siopa yn gweithredu o ran sut y mae’n
agymwys i werthwyr yn Lloegr ac i'r Memorandwm Cyd-ddealltwriaeth gyda Llywodraeth v
bu

Bydd y tal am fagiau siopa yn parhau i fod yn gymwys i werthwyr yn Lloegr yn yr un
modd ag ar hyn o bryd. Yn unig wahaniaeth yn y ddeddfwriaeth arfaethedig yw y bydd y
term “gwerthwr” yn cael ei ddiffinio bellach ar wyneb y Bil yn hytrach nag yn y rheoliadau.
Mae adran 55 o’r Bil yn gymwys mewn perthynas & Chymru ac mae, felly, yn dod o dan
adran 108(4)(b) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Cymru 2006.

Rhaid i werthwyr, i'r graddau y maent yn gweithredu yng Nghymru, gydymffurfio &
chyfraith Cymru. Bydd yn parhauT tudiayefyripecym@hfarchnadoedd yng Nghymru neu,



o ran hynny, i unrhyw fusnesau mewn unrhyw le arall yn y byd sy’n danfon nwyddau i
gartrefi yng Nghymru, godi tal am unrhyw fagiau siopa newydd y byddant yn eu cyflenwi.

Yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor ar 1 Mehefin, cyfeiriwyd at y Memorandwm Cyd-ddealltwriaeth
a’r Cytundebau Atodol a luniwyd yn 2013 rhwng Llywodraeth y Deyrnas Unedig,
Gweinidogion yr Alban, Gweinidogion Cymru a Phwyllgor Gweithredol Gogledd
Iwerddon. Mae’r egwyddor o gyfathrebu da rhwng gweinyddiaethau yn ymrwymiad
penodol yn y Memorandwm hwnnw, yn enwedig os bydd gwaith un weinyddiaeth yn cael
rhywfaint o effaith ar gyfrifoldebau gweinyddiaeth arall.

Er mai cytundeb rhwng Llywodraethau yw hwn, yn hytrach na chytundeb penodol ag
Awdurdodau Lleol, mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cydweithio’n agos &’r Gymdeithas
Llywodraeth Leol (‘LGA’) yn Lloegr, yn ogystal ag adrannau Llywodraeth y DU, i sicrhau
bod unrhyw werthwyr sy’n gweithredu yng Nghymru yn cydymffurfio & chyfraith Cymru.
Mae hyn wedi cynnwys ysgrifennu at yr LGA i egluro rél awdurdodau cartref a phrif
awdurdodau yn Lloegr wrth iddynt gynghori manwerthwyr mawr a chodi ymwybyddiaeth
am ganllawiau Llywodraeth Cymru ar orfodi.

Hoffwn hefyd achub ar y cyfle hwn i gadarnhau fy safbwynt ar adran 57 mewn perthynas
a chymhwysedd deddfwriaethol. Rwyf yn fodlon bod y ddarpariaeth hon yn briodol er
mwyn rhoi effaith i’r drefn codi taliadau am fagiau siopa a'’i bod, felly, yn dod o fewn
adran 108(5)(a) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Cymru 2006. Gan hynny, nid oes unrhyw ofyniad i
ddangos bod yn rhaid i ddibenion elusennol fod yn gysylltiedig ag un neu fwy o’r pynciau
yn Atodlen 7 i'r Ddeddf honno.

Y broses apelio yn adran 74 o’r Bil (pwer i gyflwyno hysbysiadau er mwyn diogelu
safleoedd morol Ewropeaidd) a’r berthynas rhyngddi a’r Confensiwn Ewropeaidd ar
Hawliau Dynol

Ar hyn o bryd, mae adran 5 o Ddeddf Pysgodfeydd (Pysgod Cregyn) 1967 yn caniatau i
Weinidogion Cymru benderfynu ar Orchymyn Pysgodfa Unigol neu Orchymyn
Rheoleiddio Pysgodfa Gregyn os yw pethau penodol yn digwydd, er enghraifft, nad yw'’r
bysgodfa’n cael ei ffermio’n briodol.

Mae rhwymedigaethau ar Weinidogion Cymru (yn unol &’r Gyfarwyddeb Cynefinoedd) i
warchod Safleoedd Morol Ewropeaidd (‘EMS’) yng Nghymru. Mae pryder ar hyn o bryd
bod posibilrwydd nad yw’r pwerau yn adran 5 o Ddeddf 1967 bob amser yn ddigon i
sicrhau bod Gweinidogion Cymru yn gallu cydymffurfio &'r rhwymedigaethau hynny.

Bydd y diwygiadau a wneir i Ddeddf 1967 gan adrannau 74 a 75 o’r Bil yn caniatau i
Weinidogion Cymru gymryd y camau a fydd yn angenrheidiol er mwyn gwarchod
Safleoedd Morol Ewropeaidd, os bydd pysgodfeydd cregyn a gaiff eu creu ar 6l i’r Bil
ddod i rym yn achosi niwed i safle o'r fath, neu fod bygythiad iddynt wneud hynny. Bydd
hyn yn fodd i sicrhau y bydd Gweinidogion Cymru yn gallu cydymffurfio &’r
rhwymedigaethau sydd arnynt o dan y Gyfarwyddeb Cynefinoedd.

Bydd y pwerau newydd yn galluogi Gweinidogion Cymru i gyflwyno Hysbysiad Gwarchod
Safle i granti’r bysgodfa o dan sylw yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol iddi gael ei gweithredu (neu
beidio a chael ei gweithredu) mewn ffordd benodol. Caiff Gweinidogion Cymru, wedi
hynny, addasu neu ddirymu’r Gorchymyn Pysgodfa Unigol neu’r Gorchymyn Rheoleiddio
er mwyn adlewyrchu telerau’r Hysbysiad Gwarchod Safle. Dim ond i Orchmynion
Pysgodfeydd Unigol neu Orchmynion Rheoleiddio a gaiff eu gwneud ar ol i'r
darpariaethau yn y Bil ddod i rym y bydd y pwerau newydd hyn yn gymwys. O’r herwydd,
ni fydd y darpariaethau newydd yn effeithio ar unrhyw hawliau eiddo mewn pysgodfeydd
cregyn sy’n bodoli eisoes. Bydd unrhyw hawliau eiddo a gaiff eu creu gan Orchmynion o’r

Tudalen y pecyn 92



fath ar Ol i'r Bil ddod i rym yn cael eu creu yn ddarostyngedig i'r pwerau newydd i'w
haddasu neu i ymyrryd & hwy.

Er y bydd y pwerau newydd yn galluogi Gweinidogion Cymru i addasu neu i ddirymu
Gorchymyn Pysgodfa Unigol neu Orchymyn Rheoleiddio Pysgodfa Gregyn os bydd
hynny er budd y cyhoedd (h.y. er mwyn gwarchod amgylchedd y mér lle y bo angen er
mwyn cydymffurfio &’r rhrwymedigaethau sydd ar Weinidogion Cymru o dan y
Gyfarwyddeb Cynefinoedd), afraid dweud y bydd dyletswydd ar Weinidogion Cymru
hefyd i gydymffurfio &'r Confensiwn Ewropeaidd ar Hawliau Dynol. Gan gadw hynny
mewn cof, mae’r adran 5C newydd yn Neddf 1967 (a fewnosodir gan adran 74 o’r Bil) yn
darparu trefn apelio briodol a fydd yn helpu i sicrhau y bydd unrhyw ymyrraeth &’r hawliau
eiddo yn gymesur. Bydd, felly, yn diogelu hawliau eiddo yn ddigonol.

Ceir cyflwyno apél mewn perthynas a Hysbysiad Gwarchod Safle i'r Tribiwnlys Haen
Gyntaf a fydd &’r pwer i gadarnhau, amrywio neu ganslo’r Hysbysiad Gwarchod Safle, ac
i orchymyn i Weinidogion Cymru dalu iawndal os bydd hynny’n briodol. Mae gan'y
Tribiwnlys Haen Gyntaf hefyd y pwer i atal Hysbysiad Gwarchod Safle am gyfnod dros
dro, neu ei hamrywio, hyd nes y penderfynir yn derfynol ar yr apél.

Bydd pwer Gweinidogion Cymru i ddiwygio neu i ddirymu Gorchymyn Pysgodfa Unigol
neu Orchymyn Rheoleiddio yn cael ei weithredu drwy Offeryn Statudol. Bydd y Cynulliad
yn craffu ar offerynnau o’r fath o dan y weithdrefn Negyddol. Ni chaiff offeryn o’r fath ond
adlewyrchu telerau’r Hysbysiad Gwarchod Safle ac ni fydd modd ei wneud tan ar 0l i
gyfnod Apél a gyflwynir mewn perthynas &’r hysbysiad ddod i ben neu hyd nes 'y
penderfynir ar yr apél. Felly, mae’r drefn apelio a nodir yn adran 74 hefyd yn effeithiol o
ran diogelu mewn modd digonol unrhyw hawliau eiddo yr effeithir arnynt drwy wneud
Gorchymyn diwygio neu ddirymu o dan adran 75 o'r Bil.

Credaf y bydd adrannau 74 a 75 o'r Bil yn galluogi Gweinidogion Cymru i addasu neu i
ddirymu Gorchymyn Pysgodfa Unigol neu Orchymyn Rheoleiddio Pysgodfa Gregyn lle bo
hynny er budd y cyhoedd — h.y. er mwyn cydymffurfio & rnwymedigaethau o dany
Gyfarwyddeb Cynefinoedd — acy bydd y drefn apelio newydd yn helpu i sicrhau y bydd
unrhyw ymyrraeth & hawliau eiddo a fydd yn deillio o’r pwerau newydd hynny yn
gymesur. Rwyf yn fodlon bod y darpariaethau hyn yn diogelu hawliau eiddo mewn modd
digonol.

Gobeithio y bydd yr esboniadau hyn o gymorth ichi. Os hoffech gael rhagor o wybodaeth
amy Bil ac ynghylch sut yr wyf yn ei weld yn gweithredu, mae croeso ichi gysylltu & mi.
Bydd Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd yn cael copi o’r llythyr hwn.

Yn gywir

Carl Sargeant AC/ AM
Y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol
Minister for Natural Resources

CC: Alun Ffred Jones AM, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd

Tudalen y pecyn 93



Eitem 5.4 ASC 45

The British Association for Shooting & Conservation

Our Reference: GA/Ir/Chr
Marford Mill
Rossett
Wrexham LL12 OHL

Switchboard: 01244 573000

Chair of the Environment and Sustainability Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Ba

Cardiff y Main Fax: 01244 573001

CF99 1NA Membership hotline: 01244 573030
www.basc.org.uk

Email: enquiries@basc.org.uk

01 June 2015
Dear Chair
Agreement on International Humane Trapping Standards

I am writing to ask for your help to obtain derogation to enable the continued use of legal
traps for stoats.

The Agreement on International Humane Trapping Standards (AIHTS) is an agreement
between the European Union, Russia, Canada and latterly the US to improve the welfare
standards associated with ‘fur trapping’.

Humane spring traps have been legally regulated in Wales since 1957 and their use is
permitted under the Spring Traps Approval Orders which are regularly updated. In Wales
the Spring Traps Approval Orders were updated in 2012. The updated orders provide the
necessary competent authority approval to use existing humane traps.

Trapping stoats in Wales is carried out for the protection of wildlife. In particular it
protects ground nesting birds. Stoats are not trapped for their fur in Wales.

Given these circumstances BASC requests derogation under the terms of the AIHTS.
This would be both appropriate and legal as provided for by Article 10 1(c) — the need to
protect fauna and flora.

BASC is worried that if the AIHTS is implemented the continued use of hitherto legal
traps would be made illegal. This would prevent the control of stoats and other pests,
including rats and grey squirrels.

The procedure for developing testing and approving a trap for stoats under the AIHTS
would make it uneconomic. This would be detrimental and have unintended
consequences for biodiversity.

| would be grateful if you could give this consideration.

Similar letters have been sent to the Minister for Natural Resources and the Deputy
Minister for Farming and Food as well as all competent authorities in the UK.

I look forward to hearing from you.

Yours sincerely

I
)
The British Association for Shooting and Conservation Limited

Registered Society N 28488R
Gary AShton BASC is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority ref 311937
Director, BASC Wales Patron: HRH The Prince Philip, Duke of Edinburgh, KG KT

Tudalen y pecyn 94 President: The Earl of Home KT CVO CBE

Chairman: Clir Alan Jarrett

Together - for shooting conservation, the future and for you Chief Executive: Richard All BSc (Hons) MSc



	Agenda
	2 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Cymru) - Cyfnod 1: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 1
	Papur 1

	3 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Cymru) - Cyfnod 1: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 2
	Papur 2

	4 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Cymru) - Cyfnod 1: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 3
	5.2 Ateb at y Cadeirydd gan y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol ynghylch y broses o benodi Cadeirydd Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru
	5.3 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol ynghylch Bil yr Amgylchedd (Cymru).
	5.4 Llythyr at y Cadeirydd gan Gary Ashton, Cyfarwyddwr BASC, mewn perthynas â’r Cytundeb ar Safonau Rhyngwladol ar gyfer Trapio heb Greulondeb.

